
          

 

 

VERONA WALK 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

COLLIER COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

APRIL 20, 2023 
10:00 A.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.veronawalkcdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 
 

AGENDA 
VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Town Center at Verona Walk 
8090 Sorrento Lane 

Naples, Florida 34114 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

April 20, 2023 
10:00 a.m. 

 
A. Call to Order 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 

C. Proof of Publication……………………………………………………………………………………..Page 1 

D. Establish Quorum 

E. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

F. Comments from the Public  

G. Approval of Minutes 

1. February 16, 2023 Regular Board Meeting.........................................................................................Page 2 

H. Old Business 

I. New Business 

1. Presentation by Advanced Aquatic Services – Mike Sweeney 

2. Discussion and Approval of Proposal for Repairs of Drainage 

3. Discussion and Approval of Proposal for Lake Bank Erosion 

4. Discussion Regarding Motion Made at Last February Meeting on Future Drainage Repairs 

5. Budget Discussion 

J. Administrative Matters 

1. District Attorney Update 

2. District Engineer Update 

3. Field Inspector Update 

4. District Manager Update 

a. Financials……………………………………………………………………………………..Page 6 

K. Board Members Comments 

1. Discussion on Improving Communications with the Homeowners – Hogan 

a. First CDD Information Sent to the HOA for Weekly Update – Czubkowski……………….Page 10 

2. List of Drainage Approved by ACC – Czubkowski………………………………………………..Page 11 

L. Adjourn 



Page 1



 

Page 1 of 4 
 

VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

FEBRUARY 16, 2023 
 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The February 16, 2023, Regular Board Meeting of the Verona Walk Community Development 
District (the “District”) was called to order at 10:00 a.m. at the Town Center at Verona Walk located 
at 8090 Sorrento Lane, Naples, Florida 34114.  
 
B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
C. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been published in 
the Naples Daily News on October 11, 2022, as part of the District’s Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Meeting 
Schedule, as legally required.  
 
D. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
It was determined that the attendance of the following Supervisors constituted a quorum and it was 
in order to proceed with the meeting: 
 
Chairperson Marilyn Czubkowski Present 
Vice Chairman Peter Monti Absent 
Supervisor Pat Clifford Present 
Supervisor Jack Hogan Present 
Supervisor  Vacant 

 
Staff members in attendance were: 
 
District Manager Kathleen Meneely Special District Services, Inc. 

General Counsel Greg Urbancic (via phone) Coleman Yovanovich Koester 

Field Inspector Bohdan Hirniak  

 
Also present were the following:  Joe & Sue Candela, Herb Czeschin, Jeanne Condle, Don Hazard, 
Paulette Thompson and CJ Deal. 
 
Also present were Jeff Moding & Colin Brown of Solitude. 
 
E. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
F. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

Page 2



 

Page 2 of 4 
 

 
Ms. Condle asked for an update on the littoral shelf planting project.  Ms.  Czubkowski noted that the 
company that put in the plants will give a presentation at the next meeting.  She added that some of 
the plants were failing and similar projects had been done 3 times without being successful. 
 
Mr. Candella asked about the spike rush that has grown and the tan crud that is not dead grass.  Mr. 
Hirniak stated that Clarke treats the spike rush on a regular basis and that areas too deep for spike 
rush are now growing as the water goes down in the shallow areas.  He added he would look into the 
“crud”, but believes it is decomposing spike rush that rain will eventually break up.   
 
G. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  January 19, 2023, Regular Board Meeting  
 
The January 19, 2023, Regular Board Meeting minutes were presented for approval.   
 
A motion was made by Mr. Clifford, seconded by Mr. Hogan and passed unanimously approving the 
minutes of the January 19, 2023, Regular Board Meeting, as presented. 
 
H. NEW BUSINESS  
 1.  Presentation by Solitude – Jeff Moding 
 
Mr. Moding introduced himself and Mr. Brown as the new vendor servicing the lakes, as Solitude  
bought out Clarke.   He added that Solitude was a self-contained company and does over $1 Million 
in plantings with offices in Ft. Myers.  He stated that the development would be keeping their current 
technicians.  Mr. Clifford asked about the lack of fish and Mr. Moding stated that they have a huge 
fisheries division that can do studies and see what is out there.  He added that aeration was very 
important for fish and the company was still getting acclimated with the development’s history.  
Discussion ensued regarding the company’s website and services. 
 
Ms. Condle asked about the strengths and weaknesses of the lakes.  Mr. Brown stated that there was 
a strong water quality and littoral shelves and he has no concerns.   
 
I. OLD BUSINESS 
 1.  Discussion Regarding Communications /Town Hall Meeting 
 
Ms. Czubkowski gave the background on the issue.  Discussion ensued on the timing of such a 
meeting and the Sunshine Laws involved concerning Board Members presentation/attendance.  Mr. 
Clifford indicated, with eight people in the audience today, was the largest audience the District has 
ever had, he is not in favor of an additional meeting.  Ms. Czubkowski suggested doing it at a regular 
meeting and starting communication by putting the CDD 101 presentation on the website.  She also 
stated she would start getting a blurb in the newsletter, if possible.  Mr. Hogan stated that all the Board 
can do is try to get the right word out.  There was a consensus of the Board to shoot for a fall meeting 
when it is season for residents.   
 
 2.  Discussion Regarding Lake Bank Restoration 
 
Mr. Hirniak advised that the lake bank survey had been completed and there were six locations where 
leftover stone was used to stabilize the banks that were starting to erode and would be finished this 

Page 3



 

Page 3 of 4 
 

year.  He added that in three areas where previous work failed, it will be fixed by Napier this year.  
He pointed out that there were eight new locations with erosion caused primarily from run-off from 
rear downspouts from homes.  Ms. Czubkowski stated that 14 areas is far less than before.  Mr. 
Hirniak stated that he would be getting a proposal for the remaining areas.  Discussion ensued about 
the individual properties who have unburied pipes.  Mr. Hogan stated that the homeowners should 
pay for the repairs, not the CDD.   Mr. Clifford stated that some of the installations could have been 
done 14 years ago.  Mr. Hirniak stated he would work on developing a price. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Clifford, seconded by Mr. Kurzawski and passed unanimously directing 
Mr. Hirniak to get the proposals with the homeowners responsible to make the repairs.   
 
J. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 1.  District Attorney Update 
 
Mr. Urbancic stated he was contacted by Pulte Homes on the conservation area and upon discussion 
with the Manager and Chair, requested Pulte give us the documentation to review.   He added that the 
documentation has not yet been received.  Mr. Clifford pointed out that the CDD does not want to 
take over responsibility for the area. 
 
 2.  District Engineer Update 
 
There was no District Engineer Update at this time. 
 
 3.  Field Inspector Update 
 
Mr. Hirniak went over the lake and rain levels that were lower than last year.  He added that wildlife 
was healthy and lake bank mowing was underway.   
 
 4.  District Manager Update 
 
Ms. Meneely presented the financials.  There were no questions from the Board Members. 
 
Ms. Meneely went over the upcoming meeting schedule, noting that two of the Board Members could 
not make the March meeting.  It was the consensus of the Board to cancel the March meeting with 
April 20 being a presentation by the contractor of the littoral planting project.  Budget presentation 
was discussed with the consensus of the Board being to hold budget presentations at the May and July 
meetings. 
 
Ms. Meneely stated that she would be on vacation in June, so if they want to hold that meeting, there 
would be a substitute District Manager or it would be necessary to change the date. 
 
K. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
There were no further comments from the Board Members. 
 
L. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Page 4



 

Page 4 of 4 
 

There being no further business to come before the Board, the Regular Board Meeting was adjourned 
at 11:23 a.m. on a motion made by Mr. Hogan, seconded by Mr. Kurzawskiand that motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________ __________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chair/Vice-Chair 

Page 5



Verona Walk
Community Development District

   Financial Report For
March 2023

Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Verona Walk Community Development District – CDD 

The CDD would like to provide monthly informational articles regarding Stormwater 
Management within VeronaWalk.  The District was established in April of 2004.  The District is a 
local elected governing board consisting of 5 supervisors.   

The purpose of the District is to manage the Stormwater within our community.  VeronaWalk 
has 40 detention ponds which are referred to as lakes or ponds.  We are part of a larger 
stormwater system that extends to the area south of our development.  Ponds one and two, the 
ponds at the front of VeronaWalk, are lined and contribute little to Stormwater Management.  
Ponds 3 through 26 are located west of Sorrento Lane and 27 through 40 are located east of 
Sorrento Lane.   

Where does our water come from: 1) Rain approximately 54 inches annually, rain not only feeds 
our lakes directly, but also feeds the aquifer and wells.  The Wells are owned and operated by 
the VeronaWalk HOA, annual allocation is 401.45 million gallons.  Where does our water go: 1) 
Irrigation – of 285 acres of turf grass and landscape.  The irrigation system is owned and 
operated by VeronaWalk HOA; and 2) Evaporation – nearly equals rainfall. 

Our meetings are held at 10:00 a.m. the 3rd Thursday of each month in the Town Center.  The 
agenda book is posted one week prior to the meeting and can be found by going to 
www.veronawalkcdd.org.  Our next meeting is April 20th and we will be discussing Lake Bank 
repairs and starting the budget process.  Please plan on attending one of our meetings.  

Respectfully, 

Marilyn Czubkowski, Chairperson 
Verona Walk Community Development District 
 

 

Page 10



2021 VeronaWalk

ACC Project Approved

Pools, Drainage, and

Landscaping

Street Name Street # Date of Meeting Owner Project

1 Toscana Ct. 7059 5/27/2021 Klockner Pool

2 Marconi 7179 9/9/2021 Czeschin Drainage

3 Emilia 7410 8/12/2021 Boyan Drainage

4 Garibaldi 7545 3/25/2021 Chaumillion Drainage

5 Novara 7562 11/18/2021 Cameron Drainage

6 Garibaldi 7597 8/12/2021 Baughman Pool

7 Novara 7606 8/26/2021 Osterrout Drainage

8 Rozzini Lane 7612 1/7/2021 Lagano Pool

9 Rozzini Lane 7637 6/10/2021 Escalante Drainage

10 Sicilia Ct. 7668 8/12/2021 Kettle Pool

11 Sicilia Ct. 7669 7/22/201 Lee Drainage Front of House

12 Rozzini Lane 7677 1/21/2021 Criss Drainage Landscape approved/drainage need application

13 Sicilia Ct. 7677 5/13/2021 Popple Drainage Check pool overflow pipe?

14 Sicilia Ct. 7710 3/11/2021 Schultz Drainage

15 Tommasi Ct 7747 5/27/2021 Keevar Pool

16 Orvieto 7776 8/12/2021 Chapman Drainage

17 Umberto Ct. 7854 5/27/2021 Juran Pool

18 Portofino Ct. 7875 6/24/2021 Albanese Drainage

19 Wilfredo 8046 9/23/2021 Marcotte Drainage Landscape approved drainage included Soto Ins. provided

20 Benelli Ct. 8423 5/13/2021 Miscia Drainage

21 Karina Ct. 8446 3/25/2021 Culotta Drainage

22 Benelli Ct. 8452 7/22/2021 White Drainage Must notify CDD when completed 

23 Alessandria Ct. 8453 3/25/2021 Chylinski Drainage

24 Deimille 8469 8/26/2021 Arcos Pool

25 Benelli Ct. 8488 4/8/2021 Webber Drainage

26 Benelli Ct. 8489 3/11/2021 Davis Drainage

27 Darina Ct. 8526 6/24/2021 Gershen Drainage Pipe required to be buried

28 Karina Ct. 8542 9/23/2021 Forte Pool Gulf Shore Pools & Spas ‐ Silt Fence ‐ Ins. Provided

29 Alessandria Ct. 8595 5/27/2021 Cantarella Pool

30 Palermo 8599 8/26/2021 Eichenlaub Drainage

31 Palermo 8602 8/12/2021 Blakeslee Pool

32 Erice Ct 8618 5/27/2021 Simmons Landscaping Tree removal needs CDD approval in writing

33 Querce Ct. 8737 5/13/2021 Gingher Pool

34 Zurigo Lane 8825 12/16/2021 Clegg Drainage

35 Zurigo Lane 8857 Strong Pool New Florida Pool, Inc. ‐ Ins. Provided

Page 11


	Verona Walk Community Development District - April 20, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	February 16, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Financials
	First CDD Information Sent to the HOA for Weekly Update
	List of Drainage Approved by ACC




